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          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Good morning

          3  everyone.  I'd like to call this meeting of the

          4  Subcommittee on Zoning and Franchises to Order.

          5                 We have a number of important

          6  rezonings on the agenda, which I'll go through in a

          7  second.

          8                 First, let me recognize the Members

          9  of the Committee that are here.  Council Member

         10  Dilan; Council Member Felder; Council Member

         11  Jackson; Mike McMahon; Helen Sears.  We're also

         12  joined by Oliver Koppell.  This Committee is getting

         13  so big, I have to get used to doing all the names.

         14  It started out as five, now it's 11.

         15                 What I'm going to do is go through

         16  very quickly all the items that are on the agenda.

         17  Because City Planning will make one presentation on

         18  all of the items.  We will then take, depending upon

         19  the order of the speakers, the public hearing aspect

         20  on each item.  So this will be done so we can move

         21  this ahead expeditiously.

         22                 First the rezoning is Land Used

         23  number 31, C060129ZMK, commonly referred to as the

         24  Homecrest rezoning.  It is Council Member Nelson,

         25  Stewart, and Fidler's district.
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          2                 Land Use number 33, C060109ZZMX, the

          3  commonly referred to as the Brush Avenue rezoning,

          4  in Council Member Vacca's district.

          5                 Land Use number 34, C060110ZMX,

          6  commonly referred to as the Woodlawn rezoning, in

          7  Council Member Koppell's district.

          8                 Then we have Land Use number 35,

          9  C060106ZMX, commonly referred to as the Baychester.

         10                 Then we have Land Use numbers 36 and

         11  37, commonly referred to as the Sheepshead Bay

         12  rezoning, in Council Member Fidler and Nelson's

         13  district.  N060133ZRK.  And C060132ZMK.

         14                 I would ask City Planning to come up

         15  and make the presentations on these applications.

         16                 I see we've also been joined by

         17  Council Member Mike Nelson, Council Member Seabrook,

         18  and Council Member Katz.

         19                 MS. REGUL: Good morning Council

         20  Members.  I hope I remember how to work this mike.

         21  It's been a few months since the last presentation.

         22  This is a continuing series of rezonings that we

         23  have done in the Bronx.  And this particular

         24  neighborhood that we are looking at is the Woodlawn

         25  community, which is up in the northern part of the
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          2  Bronx.  It's about a 40- block area, bounded on the

          3  north by the Yonkers city line; on the south by

          4  Woodlawn Cemetery, the Bronx River Parkway.  Webster

          5  Avenue is on the east and Van Cortlandt Park is kind

          6  of on the west.  It's a neighborhood which is

          7  predominantly low density.  There had been some

          8  rezoning earlier in the mid- 1990s.  However, there

          9  were numerous issues that were raised by the

         10  community.  As well as by elected officials.

         11  Councilman Koppell.  And we re- examined the area to

         12  look at trying to get a better mix between what the

         13  zoning allows and the actual built environment.

         14                 The area as you see on the map to my

         15  left, that was the existing zoning, was

         16  predominantly zoned R4- 1.  R4- 1 is a district is a

         17  lower density district that permits detached and

         18  semi- detached houses.  However, if you look at that

         19  map, you will notice the overwhelming preponderance

         20  of a light yellow color. Those are detached houses.

         21  So what we are proposing is that the zoning be

         22  changed for the most part, from the R4- 1 to an R4A.

         23    The R4A leaves the permitted density unchanged.

         24  However, it changes the configuration.  So instead

         25  of having either detached or semi detached, it will
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          2  mostly  --  it will limit it to detached only.

          3                 A number of other areas on the right-

          4  hand side of the area that I just pointed to, there

          5  was a section of that had been zoned R- 5, which is

          6  a district that has unlimited in configuration, and

          7  allowed multiple dwellings.  That is also being

          8  added to the R4A.  Which was limited to single, one-

          9  and two- family detached houses.

         10                 And also, if you look at the middle,

         11  there is a central spine of R5B.  There is a slight

         12  addition to the R5B, previously within the R4 area,

         13  there was a little cluster of apartment buildings

         14  and row houses.  And that is much more appropriate

         15  to be in an R5B district, which allows, it's really

         16  geared toward row housing and small apartment

         17  buildings.  So we're fixing that to make that a

         18  little better.

         19                 Give me a second, I'll put up a photo

         20  board so this can be illustrated.   As you can see

         21  on top, the top two rows, are the buildings which

         22  are indicative of what is predominantly the build

         23  character of the area.  Mostly detached housing.

         24  The third from the top is the area that shows the

         25  proposed R5B, which would be the row house and small
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          2  apartment house zone.  And really, on the bottom, is

          3  something that is very illustrative of the issues

          4  that brought us here, and that is the demolition

          5  that had been taking place in the area, where small

          6  homes were being replaced by semi- detached

          7  buildings on the lower right- hand side of the

          8  drawing.  That will give an example, and if you look

          9  at that, that is clearly out of character with what

         10  you have in the first two rows.  So this is really

         11  designed to address that.

         12                 Are there any questions?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         14  Koppell.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes.  I just

         16  want to thank Nestor who spoke, and the City

         17  Planning Commission, particularly the Bronx office

         18  for their work on Woodlawn.  As Nestor suggested,

         19  while there was a rezoning in the 90s, and

         20  initially, there was some resistance to looking at

         21  this again, I think that this is a very unique

         22  community, Woodlawn.  It's almost like a village in

         23  the City.  Or town, a small town in the City.  And

         24  the rezonings that are proposed will preserve that

         25  character indefinitely.  And I think it's very
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          2  valuable, and it has, as far as I can tell, pretty

          3  much unanimous support in the Woodlawn community.

          4  And also in the Community Board, which represents a

          5  broader area of the North Bronx.  We share the

          6  Community Board.  Larry Seabrook and I.  And the

          7  Community Board voted for this, as well as the local

          8  Woodlawn Taxpayers Association that's very active.

          9  So I want to thank the City Planning Commission for

         10  going back to Woodlawn.  And I think this is a very

         11  important and positive step.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  Any

         13  question, comments from Council Members?  Thank you.

         14    We'll move on to the next presentation.

         15                 MS. REGUL:  Good morning Council

         16  Members.  Good morning Chair Avella.  Can you hear

         17  me?  Good morning.  My name is Julia Regul, I'm the

         18  City Planner for Bronx Community District 10. And

         19  I'm here to present to you two rezonings.  The first

         20  one is the Brush Avenue rezoning in District 10,

         21  which is Council Member Vacca's district.  I brought

         22  this map to show you  --  these are actually a photo

         23  of items on the Throgs Neck rezoning, which was

         24  approved by you in September, 2004, which

         25  contractually rezoned about 280 blocks of Community
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          2  District 10.

          3                 The first one I'm going to present is

          4  the Brush Avenue rezoning, which is just west, off

          5  the Throgs Neck area rezoning, a three- block area

          6  that is currently zoned R4.  The area we are looking

          7  at again, it's a three- block area, approximately

          8  bound by Wenner Place to the north, the Hutchinson

          9  Parkway to the east, Jay Place to the south, and

         10  Brush Avenue to the west.  It's just adjacent to the

         11  Westchester Creek, and it's a small residential

         12  enclave in a manufacturing district.

         13                 It's currently zoned R4, which allows

         14  for all building types.  But if you see in the Land

         15  Use colors, the light yellow is the one- and two-

         16  family detached homes, which is the majority of the

         17  building type there.  We're proposing to rezone this

         18  to an R4A, which would limit the build form to the

         19  one- and two- family detached homes.  But preserve

         20  the same floor area ratio.              By rezoning

         21  this, it will become part of Ward's District 10's

         22  lower- density growth management area.  And the

         23  parking would increase here to two- parking spaces

         24  for a one- family home, and three parking spaces for

         25  a three- family home.
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          2                 This is the --  yes, I'd better turn

          3  it around. There's a second rezoning, which is

          4  pretty much the same.  It's a five- block area north

          5  of the Throgs Neck rezoning, that is currently zoned

          6  R3- 2, and a half block area is zoned R6.  But

          7  again, the majority of the homes is residential

          8  lots, as one- and two- family detached homes.

          9  There's a large number of the lots in the area

         10  vacant, and the community is concerned that with the

         11  existing zoning allowing for all building types and

         12  higher densities, that over development would move

         13  in and these homes would be replaced with apartment

         14  buildings and the vacant lots also filled with

         15  multi- family dwellings.  So we're proposing to

         16  rezone it from the R3- 2 to an R3A, which would

         17  again, limit it to one- and two- family detached

         18  homes, and increase the parking to two per one

         19  family home, and three for a two- family home, also

         20  subject to the lower density growth management

         21  regulations.  Thank you.  Any questions?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: For the record,

         23  this lies in Council Member Seabrook's district.

         24  Council Member, do you want -

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: It's in my
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          2  district, and I didn't have any consultation.

          3  Perhaps they were talking to Mr. Vacca instead of

          4  me.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Well, that's what

          6  we're having some discussion this morning.  Because

          7  City Planning led us to believe it was in Council

          8  Member Vacca's district.  And we found out today

          9  that no, this is in your district.  And we actually

         10  had some discussion this morning about this, as to

         11  whose district this lies within.

         12                 MS. REGUL: Because there was one

         13  particular, the Village of Baychester, it was

         14  supposed to be part of the Throgs Neck rezoning.  So

         15  I wasn't the Planner then, but you might have been

         16  briefed in the first time around.  Because due to a

         17  technical error, it got forgotten on the final map.

         18  But was analyzed like in the Throgs Neck rezoning.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: I still

         20  wasn't notified. I've been representing the district

         21  and had no consultation at all. With me, about this.

         22

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I'm advised by

         24  staff that our paperwork did have you as the Council

         25  Member.  City Planning had it as Council Member
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          2  Vacca.

          3                 We will investigate what happened

          4  here.  I mean, the interesting thing is, and I

          5  actually mentioned this to City Planning the other

          6  day, we are doing so many rezonings, and we are

          7  doing them at such an accelerated pace, that the

          8  possibility exists for error.  And I think that's

          9  something that we all have to be very careful about.

         10    And double and triple checking everything that's

         11  happening.  So your point is well taken, Council

         12  Member, and I think we need to vote from our end,

         13  and the City Planning's end. Take a better look at

         14  the procedures that are involved, and make sure that

         15  we're following through and letting everybody know

         16  what's happening.  Not only before the fact, but

         17  even after the vote, because there's been some

         18  things that have been brought to my attention in

         19  terms of modifications that Council Members may have

         20  asked for that sometimes slip through the cracks

         21  because we're not following through properly.

         22                 So there definitely needs to be more

         23  communication on both sides.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Mr.

         25  Chairman, if the possibility exists, if we could ask
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          2  to postpone this vote until I get some consultation.

          3    Is that possible?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We could always

          5  postpone the vote until right before Land Use

          6  Committee.  Which would give us, when is that,

          7  Thursday?

          8                 MS. REGUL: The 50th day, I think is

          9  March 30th.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: But I don't think

         11  we want to delay  --  you know, the reason we're

         12  doing these things on an expedited basis is not to

         13  lose time.  So I think we would want to-  You have

         14  to tell us how much time you need.  Why don't we

         15  talk about this afterwards.  But we can definitely

         16  hold the vote off on that, at least until the Land

         17  Use meeting.

         18                 Any other comments, Council Member?

         19  Any other questions from Council Members?  Thank

         20  you.  We'll move on to the next presentation.

         21                 MS. MYER: Good morning Council

         22  Members.  I'm Regina Myer, Director of the Brooklyn

         23  office of the Department of City Planning.  I'm so

         24  pleased to be here today to speak regarding the

         25  Sheepshead Bay rezoning first.  This rezoning, as
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          2  you know, has been put forth in response to a good

          3  deal of concern regarding over development in the

          4  area of Sheepshead Bay north of Emmons Avenue. We

          5  worked very, very hard with the local officials,

          6  Council Member Fidler, to make sure the area was

          7  large enough.  And with the local community group,

          8  the Sheepshead Bay/Plumb Beach Civic Association,

          9  and with Community Board 15.

         10                 The proposed rezoning and the

         11  adjoining text amendment would protect the low- rise

         12  area north of Emmons Avenue from out- of- character

         13  development.  Susan Silverman and my staff will

         14  describe this in detail.

         15                 MS. SILVERMAN: Thank you.  Good

         16  morning.  My name is Susan Silverman.  I'm the

         17  Project Planner for Community District 15.  And I'd

         18  like to go into our proposal for the Sheepshead Bay

         19  rezoning.  The Department of City Planning is

         20  proposing to rezone portions of eight blocks in the

         21  Special Sheepshead Bay district, as well as to amend

         22  the text of the Special Sheepshead Bay district, in

         23  the Sheepshead Bay/Plumb Beach community of South

         24  Brooklyn, Board 15.

         25                 The rezoning area is generally
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          2  bounded by East 27th Street on the west; Shore

          3  Parkway on the north; Emmons Avenue on the south;

          4  and the mid- block east of Ford Street on the east.

          5  And the area is part of a larger Sheepshead Bay

          6  special district, which encompasses about 20 blocks,

          7  and it was created in 1973 to emphasize the unique

          8  waterfront character of the Sheepshead Bay

          9  community.  And I just would like to show you the

         10  photographs. I'll give you a flavor of the

         11  waterfront area in Sheepshead Bay, as well as a

         12  sampling of the very small bungalows and one- family

         13  homes that are characteristic of the area that we

         14  are proposing to rezone.

         15                 The existing zoning is R5 and R5 in

         16  the Special Sheepshead Bay district, and C2- 2

         17  commercial overlay on the frontage of Emmons Avenue.

         18    And the R5 is a general residence district, and

         19  permits a variety of housing types.  And what has

         20  happened in the recent years, is there's been a

         21  surge of as of right development along Emmons

         22  Avenue, where small bungalows and small homes have

         23  been replaced by three- and four- story multi family

         24  dwellings, as well as on the side streets off Emmons

         25  Avenue. This is something that we wanted to deal
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          2  with, because more and more development was out of

          3  character with the existing area.

          4                 So what we have proposed to remedy

          5  this is  --  what we've proposed is first of all, a

          6  rezoning of the R5 area to two types of zones.  One

          7  is an R4- 1 zone, which is an exclusively one and

          8  two- family detached and semi- detached zone that

          9  will protect the low- rise character of the existing

         10  bungalows in the area.

         11                 The second rezoning is R4B.  As you

         12  can see on the map, in the area in red, where there

         13  is consistently row housing of one- and two- family

         14  homes.  And the R4B will protect that.

         15                 The third element that we are doing,

         16  is we are shrinking the C2- 2 commercial overlays on

         17  the frontage of Emmons Avenue, so that there will be

         18  no commercial development that will seep into the

         19  side streets.

         20                 The final change that we're making,

         21  which is the accompanying text amendment  --  what

         22  we are doing is, we are amending the Sheepshead Bay

         23  Special District text to change the lines of the

         24  district.  Currently, the Special Sheepshead Bay

         25  district regulations override the underlying zoning.
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          2    And so, to remedy that, we are making the lines

          3   --  reducing the lines of the Special District on

          4  the lower drawing, to make them consistent with the

          5  lines of the new zones that we're creating so that

          6  the Special District regulations don't override what

          7  we're trying to do with the proposed rezoning.

          8  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         10  Fidler.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you Mr.

         12  Chairman.  It was about four years ago that I first,

         13  at the behest of community groups in Sheepshead Bay,

         14  began asking for a down- zoning in Sheepshead Bay.

         15  And it was about three years later that the powers

         16  that be finally authorized Brooklyn City Planning to

         17  work on it. And for the diligent work that they did

         18  at that point, I want to thank the Brooklyn office,

         19  all of you.

         20                 Unfortunately, I wish that the call

         21  had been heeded four years ago.  The area that we're

         22  down- zoning now is probably physically about as big

         23  as that map on the blowup grid here.  I have

         24  described it as too little, too late.  Sheepshead

         25  Bay has in fact Mr. Chairman, and I am sure you're
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          2  very sensitive to this, has been raped and pillaged

          3  by developers for the last three years.  As a

          4  momentum grew for this down- zoning, the foundations

          5  flowed.  This down- zoning does not include the

          6  largest, single plot of land on Emmons Avenue that

          7  is available for development.  And I guarantee you

          8  that will be the next structure that will go up that

          9  will be out of character with the Sheepshead

         10  Bay/Plumb Beach community that we had hoped to

         11  preserve.

         12                 I have put my name on this resolution

         13  because I would like this little piece to be done as

         14  quickly and as expeditiously as possible, and I urge

         15  my colleagues on this Committee, and on Land Use and

         16  the Council, to pass it now. Because I am sure, that

         17  even as we are speaking, there are developers out

         18  there trying to figure out a way to build something

         19  that will be out of character with what we are

         20  proposing today.  So I thank my colleagues, the

         21  Committee, and Brooklyn City Planning but I am sure

         22  that I am speaking for a great number of my

         23  constituents who are very, very frustrated by the

         24  delay to getting to this day, and what it has done

         25  to the Sheepshead Bay/Plumb Beach community.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Any other

          3  comments from my colleagues?  Then we'll move on to

          4  the last presentation.

          5                 MS. MYER: Good morning.  Again.  I'm

          6  Regina Myer, here on behalf of the Department of

          7  City Planning.  I'm the Director of the Brooklyn

          8  office.  This morning, we will also present to you

          9  the rezoning in the area known as Homecrest, in

         10  Community District 15.  This is an area north of the

         11  Sheepshead Bay area we just discussed, in Southern

         12  Brooklyn.  And this is really, again, another

         13  rezoning started and established in response to

         14  significant concern regarding over development.  We

         15  worked very, very hard with Council Member Nelson

         16  and his staff, who I'd like to thank, who I know

         17  have been very, very  --  working with the community

         18  members, as well as a number of residents in the

         19  area.

         20                 The area focuses on the R6 districts

         21  along not just Ocean Avenue, where there's been a

         22  tremendous amount of change over the past few years,

         23  but the adjoining sides of the streets between Kings

         24  Highway and Avenue S.  Our proposal truly seeks to

         25  balance the desire in this area to curb over
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          2  development in those areas perhaps overly zoned R6,

          3  with the desire, as you will hear, for new

          4  construction in certain areas.

          5                 Without further adieu, Owen Foote

          6  will take us through the proposal.

          7                 MR. FOOTE: Good morning.  The

          8  Homecrest rezoning seeks to rezone a 70- block area

          9  in the neighborhood just north of the Sheepshead Bay

         10  section of Southern Brooklyn.  This area is bounded

         11  to the north by Kings Highway; to the one southern

         12  boundary, Avenue S; and then situated between Coney

         13  Island Avenue and both sides of Ocean Avenue as it

         14  extends towards Sheepshead Bay.

         15                 The rezoning primarily focuses on the

         16  R6 zoned areas, but also includes two small CA- 2

         17  and C4- 2 zoned areas.  And I will allude to the

         18  significance of those later on.

         19                 The photographs on the board to my

         20  left show typical housing types that traditionally

         21  have been constructed within this R6 zoned area for

         22  the last 30 years.  In the last ten years or so,

         23  we've seen demolition of detached houses replaced

         24  with four- and five- story apartment buildings, as

         25  well as replaced with seven- to eight- story
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          2  buildings taking full advantage of the community

          3  facility bonus afforded to the R6 zoned area.  And

          4  that is what has brought us to propose contextual

          5  zoning for a significant portion of the district.

          6                 After conducting extensive surveys,

          7  and evaluating the housing type, the densities, and

          8  the variety of building forms in this rezoning area,

          9  we've proposed essentially three zoning

         10  designations.  An R4- 1, which allows for detached

         11  to semi- detached houses of one and two units; an

         12  R5B, which allows for attached houses and multi-

         13  family units, but it also has a height limit of 33

         14  feet.  And then, the R7A, as the Land Use map on the

         15  lower  -- this Land Use map essentially shows in

         16  brown, a number of buildings that stay, are

         17  apartment- style buildings.  And the R7A continues

         18  that form, but also places a height restriction.

         19                 So, those three zonings were chosen,

         20  and essentially, the R7A, for the most part, was

         21  mapped along both sides of Ocean Avenue and portions

         22  of Kings Highway, where these apartment- style

         23  buildings are in existence today.  As well as along

         24  two small segments of Coney Island Avenue, where a

         25  CA- 2 zone is in place today, which doesn't allow
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          2  for residential construction, but there are homes

          3  there today that are above ground- floor retail.

          4                 In addition, a C4- 4A is proposed

          5  along both sides of Kings Highway, which has a

          6  similar height restriction to the R7A, and maximum

          7  development of four times the lot area.

          8                 However, the most substantial portion

          9  of the zoning occurs along Avenue S, Avenue R, up to

         10  Clinton Road, where we've proposed an R4- 1

         11  designation, where there's a predominance of

         12  detached and semi- detached houses, to preserving

         13  that neighborhood character, neighborhood feel, and

         14  as well as the R5B, again, where there happens to be

         15  a bit more row houses, and/or densities that exceed

         16  that allowed by R4- 1.

         17                 So essentially, this proposal seeks

         18  to be comprehensive, and allows for some minor

         19  development opportunities to continue, close to

         20  Kings Highway and Coney Island Avenue.  But for the

         21  most part, preserves much of the neighborhood, which

         22  is what brought us here today.  Thank you very much.

         23    And are there any questions?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  Are

         25  there any questions from Committee Members, Council
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          2  Members?  I would hang loose guys.  Stay in the

          3  room.

          4                 I'm going to try now to do the public

          5  hearings in the most organized fashion possible.

          6  First of all, let us look at Land Use number 33,

          7  which is the Brush Avenue rezoning in Council Member

          8  Vacca's district.  I see no one signed up to speak

          9  on this item.  Is that correct?  I will close the

         10  public hearing on that item.

         11                 Land Use number 34, the Woodlawn

         12  rezoning in Council Member Koppell's district.  I

         13  see no one signed up to speak on that item.  Is that

         14  correct?  I will close the public hearing on that

         15  item.

         16                 Land Use number 35, the Baychester

         17  rezoning in Council Member Seabrook's district.  I

         18  see no one signed up to speak on this item.  Is that

         19  correct?  I will close the public hearing on it.

         20                 We'll now go to the public hearing on

         21  Land Use number 36 and 37, the Sheepshead Bay

         22  rezoning.  I will call up  -- we have three speakers

         23  all in favor.  Laura Laplant.  Is she here? Okay.

         24  Gene  --  thank you.  And Ben Axelrod, from the

         25  Community Board.
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          2                 Council Member Felder.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I'm sorry.

          4  You asked earlier if anyone had anything to say, so

          5  if you don't mind, I just wanted to make two points.

          6    First of all, the bill that you are sponsoring

          7  that would sort of create a freeze when the plan is

          8  put forth, all the way at the beginning, so that we

          9  don't have this rush.  Am I --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: You're talking

         11  about the Building Moratorium Bill that I --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Basically, it

         14  wouldn't say at the very beginning.  But what it

         15  does is it would establish a moratorium once the

         16  Department of City Planning has voted to approve a

         17  rezoning, and it would establish a moratorium

         18  between that date and the date that the City Council

         19  finally approves. Given that, it would cut off a lot

         20  of the rush.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Right.  I just

         22  wanted to say for those that are present, that at a

         23  minimum, I think that's a very positive step.

         24  Because what it does is it stops the rush.  At some

         25  point, at least.  Maybe it should be earlier.  But
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          2  at least at some point.  I think that's a very

          3  important bill, and something, if we can expedite,

          4  I'd be very much in favor.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I appreciate your

          6  comment, and that is something that I've

          7  communicated to our new Speaker, that this is very

          8  important to a lot of communities in the City of New

          9  York.  And I think the bill is a moderate approach.

         10  Not a radical approach.  And I think it's something

         11  that could be instituted.  We are talking to the

         12  Administration.  But if you could have a

         13  conversation with the Administration as well, I

         14  think that would be very helpful.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Where are

         16  they?  Where is their Administration?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: They're somewhat

         18   --  they're across the hall.  If you're asking

         19  where they are.  They're somewhat in favor.  But

         20  it's unclear as to how interested they are in

         21  pushing it ahead, and by what method.  Because  --

         22  not to belabor the point, but there is some

         23  discussion that where moratoriums have gone into

         24  effect, in other municipalities, there have been a

         25  number of court cases.
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          2                 And in some instances, it has been

          3  shown that you have to do it by a ULURP batch.  In

          4  other words, a zoning change, rather than an actual

          5  local law.  Because that is part of the discussion

          6  that's going on right now.  If we were to do that,

          7  the ULURP batch would in effect, set up a process

          8  for every rezoning that would go on.

          9                 But your support is appreciated, and

         10  if you could communicate that to both the Speaker

         11  and the Administration, I think we could possibly

         12  get something done.  Because I know this is of

         13  paramount importance to a lot of people.  And a lot

         14  of communities.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: The second

         16  thing that I wanted to put forth, and I think is

         17  critical that really applies to all the issues that

         18  we're dealing with today, is a general problem with

         19  the structure, or I should say the process, by which

         20  homeowners find out when a zoning takes place in the

         21  neighborhood. And I think most of the problems that

         22  arise, and it doesn't mean that everything can be

         23  solved, but I think to me, the most frustrating

         24  thing for my constituents and people throughout the

         25  City, is that many people don't know anything about
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          2  what's going on.  Suddenly they hear very, very late

          3  on in the process that something's happening.  They

          4  don't know really what's happening. They may hear

          5  about a hearing.  People are very busy trying to

          6  earn a living and take care of their families, and

          7  that takes up 23 hours a day.  So they don't know

          8  what's going on.  And then suddenly, like they

          9  suddenly start reading articles in the papers about

         10  something that's going to happen in a week or two or

         11  three, and they start scrambling.  Which I think is

         12  unheard of.  And really not fair.

         13                 The City knows very well how to

         14  inform homeowners when they owe taxes, real estate

         15  taxes.  There's something called a Block and Lock.

         16  I get my bills all the time.  They never miss it.

         17  And if I don't pay in time, I get a second notice.

         18  I'm suggesting that whether it's a hearing in my

         19  Committee, or a bill that I'd like to introduce

         20  together with anyone else who wants to support, to

         21  mandate that when the City is going to do a rezoning

         22  in an area, the City must, as soon as it decides on

         23  a plan, must notify, via certified mail, to every

         24  homeowner in that district, a notice saying that

         25  your home is part of the rezoning that's going to
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          2  take place.  There are going to be hearings.  This

          3  process is starting now.  It will take whatever.  It

          4  doesn't have to be a long message.  Why are people

          5  finding out about it after three weeks when it's

          6  done?  It's just not fair.  So I would ask the

          7  Chair, I'd love not to do the work and just tag

          8  along, but I really think that it's something that

          9  so logical, and so fair that we, in the Zoning

         10  Committee, with your help, and the help of the Chair

         11  of Land Use and the Speaker, is something that would

         12  be constructive to help people in the future not to

         13  feel like that something is being rammed down their

         14   --  without knowing anything about it.  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member,

         16  your comments are very well taken.  It is a subject

         17  that I've already had communication with the

         18  Commissioner of the Department of City Planning.  By

         19  law, the only notification they have to do is put it

         20  in the public record.  That is really insufficient,

         21  and as you correctly point out, people find out at

         22  the last minute.  If the process for a BSA, for

         23  example, requires the applicant to notify affected

         24  property owners, I think it's within a 400- foot

         25  radius, why are we not doing something similar with

                                                            31

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  rezoning?

          3                 I could tell you that while I was

          4  having conversation with City Planning, about them

          5  doing this, without us introducing a law, Council

          6  Member Gennaro introduced a bill last session that

          7  would require this.  I assume he's going to

          8  reintroduce it again this year.  But it is clear

          9  that the Administration should just do this.  I

         10  mean, it's just simply not fair that people find it

         11   --  that it relies on either the Community Board,

         12  the Council Member, or the civic group to do the

         13  notification  --   in my case, in the rezonings in

         14  my district, I do a complete mailing.  But when you

         15  think about that, that comes out of my own budget,

         16  which is, as you know, is limited.  The City should

         17  really do that.  To every affected property owner

         18  when there's a rezoning going into effect.         If

         19  there's more money that City Planning has to have to

         20  do that, then we'll give them the more money in the

         21  budget.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: And I'm not

         23  willing to spend the money for my project.  You're a

         24  nicer guy.  I'm not.  And City Planning is

         25  wonderful.  But I think even City Planning  --  I'm
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          2  talking about the Borough Commissioners, it would be

          3  a help to them.  Because what we're doing, is we're

          4  calling them the last minute, asking for meeting

          5  after meeting after meeting about issues that are

          6  popping up at the last minute.  That should have

          7  been addressed a long time ago.

          8                 So I don't want to owe Regina Myer

          9  anything.  She's being nice.  Why should I owe her

         10  anything?  Like I want it to be done so in a way,

         11  that I don't have to beg her, even though she's

         12  nice, I don't want to have to do that.  It's not

         13  fair to them either.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member I

         15  appreciate your comments, because those are very

         16  interesting issues.  And things that we have to move

         17  on.

         18                 With that, who wants to go first?

         19                 MS. LAPLANT: Good morning Council

         20  Members.  I have lived in Brooklyn all my life, and

         21  in Sheepshead Bay for over 30 years, almost half of

         22  my adult life.  My husband's family has come from

         23  Sheepshead Bay for over 70 years.

         24                 There is very little that is

         25  reminiscent of the old Sheepshead Bay.  While we are
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          2  not against smart, prudent development, development

          3  that enhances and improves a neighborhood, that is

          4  not what is taking place in Sheepshead Bay, Plumb

          5  Beach, and Southern Brooklyn, Homecrest, Marine

          6  Madison, and Bensonhurst.

          7                 Some neighborhoods that have unique

          8  qualities and natural assets, such as Sheepshead

          9  Bay, should retain those qualities which makes them

         10  special.  Our Special Sheepshead District and

         11  zoning, designed to protect the Sheepshead Bay and

         12  Plumb Beach waterfront asset, has been taken

         13  advantage of by developers without any real research

         14  to the consequences poor planning would create.

         15                 Our waterfront area is a beautiful,

         16  natural resource that is being devoured by

         17  developers who have not respected the land, or the

         18  residents who live and own homes on that land.  Our

         19  infrastructure has been undermined, our elderly

         20  threatened and harassed by real estate agents.  Our

         21  homes and residence put in jeopardy by haphazard

         22  demolition and building.  And building that is out

         23  of character.  Our environment has been disregarded

         24  and the list goes on.

         25                 We have, as a community, worked hard
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          2  and waited long to stand before the New York City

          3  Council.  The last stop on a long journey.  My

          4  community is the very essence of what a community

          5  should represent.  We live and work here.  We pay

          6  taxes here.  We worship here.  Our children go to

          7  school here.  And play here.  Yet we have been told

          8  by developers that we have no quality of life. Our

          9  houses aren't grand enough.  Or the bungalows aren't

         10  grand enough.

         11                 What is their definition of quality

         12  of life?  I can tell them a lot about quality of

         13  life.  Represented by the hard working families that

         14  make up, and are the essence of Southern Brooklyn,

         15  all of Brooklyn.  And that's my friends, my family,

         16  and my neighbors.  My whole community.

         17                 We need a message sent to the

         18  developers that we have a quality of life, and

         19  rights that deserve to be recognized and defended.

         20  We, the residents of Southern Brooklyn, Sheepshead

         21  Bay, Plumb Beach, and the surrounding areas, appeal

         22  to the Members of City Council to vote "yes" to this

         23  zoning resolution as soon as possible, so we can go

         24  forward with smart planning and development, and

         25  also preserve what remains of a very viable
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          2  community.  Thank you very much.

          3                 MR. BERARDELLI: Thank you very much.

          4  For the record, my name is Gene Berardelli.  I'm a

          5  member of the Sheepshead Bay/Plumb Beach Civic

          6  Association.  And I would like to speak in favor of

          7  the Sheepshead Bay/Plumb Beach rezoning proposal.

          8                 Before I make my comments, I would

          9  also like to thank Mr. Ben Axelrod and Community

         10  Board 15 for all their efforts. And also Council

         11  Member Lew Fidler for all his efforts as well.

         12                 Ladies and gentlemen, Sheepshead

         13  Bay/Plumb Beach has seen, probably seen more

         14  irresponsible haphazard development than any other

         15  eight blocks in the City of New York.  There's no

         16  need to go through the litany of violations and

         17  dangers to our quality of life.  Chairman, you've

         18  seen it.  You come to our community, and we thank

         19  you for coming.

         20                 But also, don't get the wrong idea,

         21  because, as we all know, proper in- character

         22  development is welcomed everywhere in this City.

         23  What Sheepshead Bay/Plumb Beach has endured is quite

         24  the opposite.  It's development with no real plan in

         25  mind.  It's actually misuse of land.  I personally
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          2  call it smash and grab development.  Where greedy

          3  developers come into a neighborhood, they smash it

          4  and they grab every dollar they can before they

          5  leave again, and you never hear from them again.

          6                 Obviously, not everybody is happy

          7  with this plan. Councilman Fidler said, "It's not

          8  enough".  I tend to think of it as not just eight

          9  blocks, but 309 homes that are being saved from

         10  harassment.  Three hundred and nine families who are

         11  being saved from developers knocking on their door.

         12  Or building next to them and having their

         13  foundations shaken to the ground.

         14                 Some say that we need like zoning for

         15  the entire area.  But as we've learned from the

         16  Department of City Planning, and we thank them for

         17  their efforts as well, that this is no answer,

         18  because we have come to learn in Sheepshead and

         19  Plumb Beach that rezoning is much like a surgeon's

         20  tool.  It's a scalpel that comes in and is

         21  meticulously used by exacting experts, with great

         22  contemplation, and great consideration.

         23                 There are also those that say that,

         24  well the area is gone.  We might as well complete

         25  the job.  They want to come in, they want to stall
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          2  this process.  They want to line their pockets with

          3  more money from their smash and grab development.

          4  Or they already have or they want to.  So these

          5  people care nothing of what makes up the fabric of

          6  our neighborhood, because they do not wish to be a

          7  part of our neighborhood.  These people speak from

          8  self interest, while the community members and

          9  members of Sheepshead Bay/Plumb Beach community

         10  speak from self preservation.  And I personally

         11  believe that the voices that should ring truest in

         12  your heads after this hearing is over, are the

         13  voices of the people who are fighting to remain in

         14  the neighborhood, those who want to preserve their

         15  neighborhood, those who continue to work for what's

         16  great about neighborhoods, regardless of the dollars

         17  and the nonsense going on with development.

         18                 On behalf of the residents of

         19  Sheepshead Bay/Plumb Beach, and the 309 homes

         20  involved in this rezoning effort, we urge you to

         21  ignore the self interested irresponsible developers

         22  and vote wholeheartedly in favor of this rezoning

         23  proposal.  Thank you very much for your time.

         24                 MR. AXELROD: Good morning.  My name

         25  is Ben Axelrod. I'm the District Manager for
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          2  Community Board 15 in Brooklyn.  I wanted to thank

          3  the Committee, the Chairman, and the Councilmen,

          4  Councilman Fidler, City Planning, Brooklyn City

          5  Planning office. And I just wanted to echo

          6  Councilman Fidler's comments.

          7                 It is too little.  Unfortunately, it

          8  is too little. And I believe that it is the

          9  responsibility of the government.  It is the

         10  responsibility of the Mayor, of the City Council, of

         11  the Mayor's agencies, of the Community Board, in

         12  consultation with the residents of the community, to

         13  plan.

         14                 We cannot expect developers to plan

         15  the future of the communities.  Because they're in

         16  business.  They're in business just to make money.

         17  It is the responsibility of the government to plan.

         18  And it is the responsibility of the government to

         19  protect residents.

         20                 So I'm here today to support

         21  Sheepshead Bay rezoning.  The eight block, as little

         22  as it is, eight blocks.  We are also looking forward

         23  to the City Planning to come back to us and to

         24  attempt to protect whatever is left on Emmons

         25  Avenue. Because it's a commercial strip.  It's
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          2  restaurant.  It's fishing village for once was, and

          3  we still believe there is something to protect, as

          4  well as many other areas.

          5                 And I will stick around here for the

          6  next rezoning hearing, for Homecrest.  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you very

          8  much.

          9                 Council Member Fidler.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Yes.  I just,

         11  while you're all here, I do want to thank Community

         12  Board 15, the Sheepshead Bay/Plumb Civic and Bay

         13  Improvement Group who are not here today, for their

         14  advocacy and work on this issue.  And I assume, and

         15  hope that those members of the Council who are on

         16  this Committee are going to pass this today.  And

         17  that means that we're on for Thursday at Land Use.

         18  Is that correct?

         19                 And Madam Chairwoman, I am

         20  unfortunately am having some minor surgery tomorrow,

         21  and will not be able to be here on Thursday.  But we

         22  entrust to you, the important task of moving this

         23  forward on Thursday so that we can all pass this

         24  next Wednesday in the Council.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you Council
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          2  Member.  And just for the record, I share the

          3  concerns expressed by the speakers.  Certainly too

          4  much is going on.  And although we've made great

          5  progress, really great progress.  Revolutionary

          6  progress in rezoning the City of New York, it's

          7  amazing how much more needs to be done.  Because as

          8  Council Member said, you always have to build a

          9  better mousetrap.  It's like as we do one thing, the

         10  developers are finding a way around everything we

         11  do.

         12                 I will now move on to the public

         13  hearing for Land Use number 31, which is the

         14  Homecrest rezoning.  And Ben, why don't we start

         15  with you since you're sitting right there.

         16                 MR. AXELROD: Thank you.  My name is

         17  Ben Axelrod. I'm District Manager of Community Board

         18  15 in Brooklyn.  And I would like, once again, to

         19  thank the Chairman, and Brooklyn City Planning for

         20  their diligent work, as well as the local

         21  Councilman, Councilman Nelson.  Everybody worked

         22  very hard, and as was said, it's 70 blocks in

         23  Homecrest, and the Community Board supports the

         24  rezoning process.  We want to get assurances from

         25  the City Planning that if our suspicions come true
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          2  for Kings Highway, between Coney Island Avenue and

          3  Ocean Avenue, if it were to become a residential

          4  mecca, which something we're not desired to have,

          5  we'd rather to protect the commercial nature of

          6  Kings Highway.  It will come back to us as soon as

          7  possible.  Immediately, and we'll look at it once

          8  again.

          9                 We see that the rezoning can be done

         10  in less than a year, and we're thankful to everybody

         11  involved.  It's not as was once done by Community

         12  Board 10 in Brooklyn, when it took over four years

         13  to rezone certain parts of Bayridge.  I guess the

         14  City learned how to do it much faster, and we're

         15  looking forward to  -- we hope to be wrong with

         16  Kings Highway, but if it materializes, we're looking

         17  forward to see City Planning back and helping us

         18  with that issue.

         19                 As far as everything else, I believe

         20  that, as was pointed out in previous hearings, we

         21  are here to protect people who are here to stay.

         22  And that's what the proposal does.  Thank you and we

         23  urge all the City Council Members to support the

         24  rezoning. Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  We
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          2  have 12 other speaker signed up on this item.  And I

          3  will call alternating panels in favor and in

          4  opposition.

          5                 The first panel will be in

          6  opposition.  Joseph Finkelstein; Thomas Ryan; Ronnie

          7  Ryan; and Levana Green.  Are they all here?

          8                 By the way, if you've noticed, I'm

          9  not timing anybody.  But I would appreciate it if

         10  you'd all like try and keep to like three minutes.

         11  And try not to repeat what everybody else says.

         12  Whoever wants to go first.

         13                 MR. RYAN: My name is Thomas Ryan.

         14  I'm a homeowner. I live on Avenue S and East 12th

         15  Street.  I usually am well prepared to handle

         16  things.  On this particular issue, I am not well

         17  prepared.  I found out about the potential rezoning

         18  on Saturday. I don't know right now whether it's my

         19  fault or someone else's fault.  But that's the

         20  situation.  I'm not familiar with all the current

         21  different zoning regulations, R5, R4, R6.  I know

         22  that the house that I currently live in is currently

         23  R6 and is being proposed to go to an R4- 1.  Okay?

         24                 We live in a thriving community.  We

         25  live in a community where there are families that
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          2  are growing by leaps and bounds.  There's a need to

          3  have an ability within those family structures to

          4  add more rooms.  That's not necessarily for me, but

          5  I'm talking in general, for other people within the

          6  community.  No one living in the area that have

          7  talked to, and like I said, I'm not well organized,

          8  but no one that I've talked to wants a medical

          9  building, wants a condominium, or a coop.  Or any

         10  kind of commercial establishment.

         11                 Perhaps there's some classification

         12  that I'm just not aware of that allows for building

         13  an additional story, or allowing height to be a

         14  little higher to allow some extra room on a one- or

         15  two- family house.  Even with a restriction of no

         16  medical building, no coop, no other medical

         17  facility, as part of  --  I don't know, R5A, B, 3.

         18  I don't know what that classification would be.

         19                 I don't speak for everyone, because

         20  again, I'm not organized with the issue.  I do speak

         21  for myself and the few neighbors I've talked with.

         22  I do want to complement Mr. Felder, because that I

         23  think, is someone's problem, in terms of the

         24  communication for how the zoning gets communicated

         25  to people.
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          2                 Whether it's by where the tax bills

          3  come out, by block and lot number, perhaps something

          4  ought to be communicated from someone to me, or I

          5  need to be told I need to be more active in

          6  something.  Okay?

          7                 So it could be a 50- 50 situation.

          8  Thank you very much.

          9                 MR. FINKELSTEIN: My name Joseph

         10  Finkelstein.  I live on Avenue S between East 12 and

         11  East 13th Street.  I have lived there for 29 years.

         12  And basically, I don't want to waste the Committee's

         13  time with too much, but I do agree with Tom.  We do

         14  have growing families there, and we want to have the

         15  ability to expand just our own houses to be able to

         16  have our families over.

         17                 Just this past Saturday night, I had

         18  just my immediate family over, which included just

         19  my children and grandchildren, and we had 20 people

         20  there.

         21                 I am not in a position to actually

         22  build something tomorrow, but if I do want my

         23  children to be able, for the Jewish holidays or

         24  anything like that, there is no way that I would be

         25  able to do it.  Under the new proposed zoning

                                                            45

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  designation that we are going to get.  And like Tom

          3  said, we do not want the big condominiums.  We do

          4  not want the medical centers or any of the large

          5  commercial or quasi- commercial buildings, but we do

          6  want to preserve the ability to be able to build

          7  just for ourselves, when the time come.  Thank you.

          8                 MS. GREEN: Good morning.  My name is

          9  Levana Green. I also was notified last night about

         10  this rezoning.  I live on Avenue S, and I've lived

         11  there over 20 years.  And my family lived there for

         12  50 years.

         13                 I feel as my neighbors do, that if

         14  you rezone the area, I'll be restricted in building

         15  my home my own home a little larger if I need to.

         16  At the moment, I am surrounded by homes with three

         17  floors.  And I feel that if you change my zoning,

         18  because I am a corner home, that I won't be able to

         19  meet the same look.  I do not want condominiums, or

         20  a medical building.  But I would like you to

         21  reconsider homeowners like us, that  --  I mean, if

         22  I'm on R6 at the moment, and you want to drop me

         23  down to an R4, I would like you to reconsider that.

         24  An R5 maybe.  I'm not sure about the zoning. That

         25  would allow me to look like  --  that my home would
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          2  look like my neighbor.

          3                 At the moment, I only have two

          4  floors, but my family is growing, and I may want to

          5  put my son to live with us, and we may need more

          6  room.  I'm just talking about for the future.  And

          7  thank you very much.

          8                 MS. RYAN: Good morning.  I grew up in

          9  this neighborhood, on Avenue S and East 12th.  In

         10  fact, my father had his medical, family medical

         11  practice there for my whole life.  I came there when

         12  I was about nine months old.  So I've seen the

         13  neighborhood go through tremendous amount of various

         14  changes.

         15                 But what has happening now is that a

         16  lot of the homes need to be putting in another floor

         17  to accommodate the other, the large families that

         18  are growing.  And also, to have the street of Avenue

         19  S is a very wide street, and there is room for an

         20  R5B, because the East 12th, the other streets that

         21  have been zoned R5B are much narrower streets.  Our

         22  street is very wide and expansive, and could in

         23  fact, take an additional floor very easily on these

         24  homes.

         25                 And we hope to preserve the character
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          2  of our neighborhood, which for me, has been my home

          3  for my whole life.  So I thank you very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I understand that

          5  you didn't mention your name.

          6                 MS. RYAN: Oh.  Ronnie Ryan.  Excuse

          7  me.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

          9                 Next panel will be in favor.  Budd

         10  Heyman, Harvey Salzberg, Eleanor Comins, Vincent

         11  Petraro.

         12                 DR. HEYMAN: Good morning City

         13  Council.  My name is Budd, Doctor Budd Heyman.  How

         14  are you?  I want to thank City Planning, Councilmen

         15  Fidler and Nelson, and everyone else who has helped

         16  us.  Mr. Axelrod et cetera, getting this down-

         17  zoning process as quickly as they possibly could.

         18                 I have lived at Homecrest for 48

         19  years.  Hopefully I don't look 48.  You have just

         20  heard from the four people in my neighborhood who

         21  are against the down- zoning.  For reasons, perhaps

         22  not totally made clear.  I believe the reasons are

         23  more conducive to the fact that they think they're

         24  going to lose value by selling their homes in an R4

         25  instead of an R5 designation.  I wish people would

                                                            48

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  have been more forthcoming.

          3                 I have watched the piecemeal

          4  destruction in my neighborhood over the last two and

          5  a half to three years.  If anyone saw the movie Full

          6  Metal Jacket, if they remember the scene where there

          7  was that Vietnamese sniper picking apart the

          8  American troops one by one, slowly, painfully, and

          9  in a terroristic fashion, creating dread throughout

         10  the troops.  That is the way we feel in our

         11  neighborhood.  Everywhere we look, every block we go

         12  down, one house here, one house there has been torn

         13  down or two houses have been torn down.

         14                 In my block, Avenue S between 17th

         15  and East 16th, we had a beautiful seven- house row

         16  of two- story houses.  Three have been torn down in

         17  the last month and a half, in succession.  There is

         18  a huge hole on my block now.  It has cracked the

         19  walls of the elderly neighbor next to the

         20  excavation.  It has the people in my neighborhood

         21  incredibly upset.  My mother, who has been there for

         22  48 years, well, she's now 86, she's had to go

         23  through, initially, the developers calling her house

         24  at 9 o'clock at night, and in essence, threatening

         25  her.  Telling her, you should sell your house.
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          2  You're going to live next to a condo, within five

          3  inches of your home.

          4                 Two weeks ago, the developer came to

          5  my house and asked from me my name.  Which got me a

          6  little bit upset.  Telling my mother, who is

          7  elderly, that we want to be good neighbors.  I'm not

          8  sure what the euphemism is.  I'm not sure what he

          9  meant by good neighbors.  Because we were acting up

         10  too much, trying to protect our block.

         11                 What we have in our neighborhood is

         12  out of character and out of context development.

         13                 I represent the voices of the people

         14  who want to remain in our neighborhood.  Thank you.

         15  I'm sorry.  We've seen a scorched earth policy.  We

         16  know that demolition is permanent.  This cannot go

         17  on.  And we need, we desperately need this measure

         18  to be passed as soon as possible.  And hopefully by

         19  the 15th, because they may not be able to get their

         20  foundation in on time on my block.  They are

         21  scrambling.  They are doing whatever they can.  We

         22  can't wait till March 1st.

         23                 Our neighborhood begs you.  Not the

         24  four people you heard before, but the thousands who

         25  I am representing right now. Avenue S should not be
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          2  up- zoned to an R5.  R4- 1 is what it is. City

          3  Planning intelligently said it is an R4- 1 block.

          4  They are not ignorant.  They know what they are

          5  talking about and they are one hundred percent

          6  right.

          7                 Just to close this up.  The needs of

          8  the many outweigh the needs of the few.  What more

          9  can be said?  We have a responsibility not as human

         10  beings, not only to our pockets, our wallets, but

         11  also to the continuity of a neighborhood and the

         12  living conditions so people can grow up and become

         13  New Yorkers the way they should be.  Living in a

         14  neighborhood that's okay, that's nice.  That isn't a

         15  warehouse of beds and stoves.  I thank you very

         16  much.  I implore you to get this done as quick as

         17  possible.  Mr. Avella, thank you for being in the

         18  forefront.  And Mr. Nelson, Mr. Fidler, thank you

         19  very much.  And the rest of the Council Members,

         20  thank you too, for your time.

         21                 MR. SALZBERG: My name is Harvey

         22  Salzberg, and I would like to start by thanking

         23  Councilman Nelson and his office, and Borough

         24  President Markowitz, Community Board Ben Axelrod,

         25  and everybody else who has helped me through the
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          2  process, especially with City Planning, Owen Foote.

          3                 I've given testimony on many

          4  occasions already through the process, and I'm self-

          5  educated, basically, and picking up this as I go

          6  along.

          7                 Bottom line is, the property owners

          8  at 1720 East 19th Street, between Clinton Road and

          9  Avenue R has been in my family for over 40 years.

         10  Over the past three years, I have been offered

         11  ridicules sums of money by developers.  During the

         12  past two years, the home next door to mine has been

         13  developed into condos, and is near completion.  The

         14  development is over 50 feet high, and needless to

         15  say, my home is now cast in darkness all day.  Our

         16  quality of life has suffered greatly.  In many

         17  respects, as the rest of my block has five other so-

         18  called luxury condo developments under construction

         19  where private homes once stood.  In short, the block

         20  should really be declared a crime scene in the most

         21  literal sense of the word.

         22                 The area in whole, definitely

         23  requires down zoning. However, it should not be done

         24  with a broad brush approach.  Over the past year and

         25  a half, I have been attending Community Board 15
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          2  meetings regularly.  I have become educated in

          3  conjunction with the Land Use Committee, ULURP, and

          4  have spoken on the record at all previous hearings.

          5  My dilemma is this: When the initial plans were

          6  developed and rolled out on September of 2005, by

          7  City Planning and Development, they envisioned my

          8  block as R4- 1.  While the blocks adjacent to mine

          9  were slated for R5B and R7A.  The R5B is much ore

         10  suited for my block, based on the existing seven

         11  multiple- dwelling townhouse- type structures which

         12  have been on the block for over 25 years.

         13  Furthermore, there are six- story apartment housing

         14  complexes on the corner of East 19th Street and

         15  Clinton Road, which stands in front of mine and my

         16  neighbors.  These six- story apartment houses also

         17  behind our houses on East 18th Street, they have

         18  stood for better than 50 years, not to mention a

         19  six- condo developments that are now under various

         20  phases of completion.  All this points to R5B being

         21  in scale, and not out of character for this block of

         22  East 19th Street and Avenue R.

         23                 After explaining my situation on

         24  countless occasions, and after my testimony at the

         25  Borough President's November 2nd public hearing,
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          2  Borough President Markowitz sent out personnel from

          3  his office for a site survey of the block.  His

          4  office assessment agreed, as illustrated by his

          5  department's recommendation referenced ULURP,

          6  application 160129ZMK.  That this modification

          7  incorporating East 19th Street, between Clinton Road

          8  and Avenue R be zoned R5B, the same as the adjacent

          9  blocks, East 17th, 18th, and 16th Street, which are

         10  originally planned for R5B.

         11                 The City Planning Commission,

         12  November 16th public hearing, where I gave further

         13  testimony, along with Borough President's

         14  recommendation report, prompted City Planning

         15  Department to revisit the block, utilizing their

         16  planning expertise and applying common sense, they

         17  concurred with the recommendation, and revised the

         18  initial rezoning plan to designate East 19th Street

         19  between Clinton Road and Avenue R as R5B.

         20                 In closing, the revision is the right

         21  thing to do for all on the block.  The few detached

         22  homes that still stand with private homes adjacent

         23  to them, the homes that developments next door to

         24  them, the homes that are engulfed by master

         25  structures to the north, south, east, and west, the
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          2  R5B gives the individual owner greater FAR

          3  flexibility.  Structure height restrictions and

          4  requirements addressing lot line building and cares

          5  for some concerns with the parking relief needed.

          6                 Though it is my opinion that this

          7  development is on a fast track for self destruction,

          8  but as the Commissioner Burn recently stated in

          9  print, "You need growth, as long as it doesn't

         10  violate scale".  The R5B now implemented in the

         11  revised Homecrest rezoning is in scale with this

         12  block, and still allows the block to maintain any of

         13  the character that is left.  Thank you very much.

         14                 MS. COMINS: Thank you Council Members

         15  for giving our community the opportunity to be

         16  heard, and hopefully helped by your projected

         17  downsizing plans from R6 to R5.  We originally

         18  wanted R4 to hold development in our community.  But

         19  we'll settle on R5 if it will do the same, and not

         20  hold up the vote.

         21                 Before we can address downsizing, I

         22  have to tell you, that on my block, 1765 and 1769,

         23  1773 East 19th Street, between Clinton Road and

         24  Avenue R, the same reference that Harvey just spoke

         25  about, there's a triple lot being developed with
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          2  egregious land use violations front and back.

          3  Department of Buildings has no building plans on

          4  file.  And the foundation has been poured.  The

          5  Building Department has been down, and work

          6  continues daily.

          7                 Please tell me in your infinite

          8  wisdom, what good downsizing will do if the

          9  currently in place R6 zoning code can't be enforced?

         10    It would suggest, that regardless of what you

         11  downsize to, builders will continue to do whatever

         12  they damn please in flagrant violation of the law.

         13                 Please bear with me as I'd like to

         14  elaborate on the situation.  Two medical centers and

         15  five- story buildings with interior lower- level

         16  garage space are rumored to be planned for the

         17  construction site at 1765, 69, and 73 East 19th

         18  Street.  As I previously stated, the foundation

         19  appears to be already in place, on a street of one

         20  and two- family homes, and attached townhouses. We

         21  sincerely hope downsizing rules will apply to 1765,

         22  69, and 73 site, and the law will be enforced to

         23  make these law breaking builders comply with the

         24  laws.

         25                 We, the community, don't want 1765,
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          2  69, and 73 to fall through the cracks while the down

          3  zoning debate continues. These builders are in

          4  violation of current R6 zoning laws.  Our informed

          5  sources in government and law agree, and yet, they

          6  continue to work.  We need downsizing.  But we also

          7  need active enforcement of the laws already in

          8  place.  Without enforcement, the concept of zoning

          9  is meaningless.  And all we're left with is a free

         10  for all.

         11                 We hope you will be able to wield

         12  your influence to preserve what's left of our

         13  street.  We hope you will be able to protect the

         14  interests of the people living in our community as

         15  well as the business interests.  We respect and

         16  welcome healthy community development, in scale with

         17  existing community structures, as already stated by

         18  representatives from the City Planning Commission,

         19  and the Brooklyn Borough President.

         20                 We respect the law, and expect

         21  builders to be required by law to do the same.  Or

         22  be held to task.  And I don't mean by paying a few

         23  fines.  At present, the builders are breaking the

         24  laws in place now.

         25                 Two completed high- rise buildings
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          2   --  we already have two completed high- rise

          3  buildings that are renting.  That's all.  Well,

          4  that's it.  That's the information.  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I would ask that

          6  at the end of the public hearing that you come up,

          7  because I'd like to help you with that specific

          8  situation.  I mean, it's the opinion of this Chair,

          9  that any developer who does something illegal, to

         10  try and vest, under the old zoning, should be

         11  prohibited from doing so. And anybody who does a

         12  demolition or pours a foundation without the proper

         13  permits, to get in under the old zoning, I mean,

         14  that is absolutely disgraceful.  And I know the

         15  Chair, the new Chair of the Housing and Buildings

         16  Committee, Council Member Dilan, is here to listen

         17  to this, that that practice has to stop.  And the

         18  Department of Buildings has to fulfill their mandate

         19  and do proper enforcement.  That should not happen.

         20                 MS. COMINS: But if the Department of

         21  Buildings is not enforcing it, who do we go to, to

         22  have it enforced?  Because -

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: It's a good

         24  question.  And that's something that the City

         25  Council is very concerned about.
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          2                 MS. COMINS: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Vincent.

          4                 MR. PETRARO: Thank you very much.  My

          5  name is Vincent Petraro, and I represent Dr. Joseph

          6  Husney.  And I speak today on his behalf in favor of

          7  the rezoning, with modification.

          8                 Dr. Joseph Husney owns premises 2579

          9  Ocean Avenue, in Brooklyn, which is within the

         10  proposed rezoning area.  It is presently in an R6

         11  zoning district, and it's located on the east side

         12  of Ocean Avenue, 240 feet south of Avenue U.  The

         13  present rezoning proposal suggests that this

         14  property and the remainder of this block front, from

         15  150 south of Avenue U to Avenue V, be rezoned to R4-

         16  1.

         17                 The Brooklyn Borough President has

         18  called for the retention of the R6 zoning district

         19  for this part of Ocean Avenue. And it's interesting,

         20  in the Brooklyn Borough President's report, and we

         21  sort of support this part of his report, he states

         22  that, which I think is very telling, when they talk

         23  about, when he talks about the planning that went

         24  into this, that the number of detached homes

         25  remaining on the east side, proposed to be zoned R4-
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          2  1, is equal to the number that remain on the side

          3  that the Department of City Planning proposes to

          4  rezone to R7A.  Further, he goes on, and this talks

          5  about my client's property, only one house remains

          6  on the northern half of the block, on the east side

          7  of Avenue U.  This building is wedged between a

          8  medical building and a construction site for a

          9  multi- family building, and will likely vest with

         10  the existing R6 zone.

         11                 I passed around two photos that show

         12  the very tall medical building to the south of my

         13  client's property, and then you can see the

         14  construction site to the north.

         15                 To go on, my client, who had been

         16  planning to construct a small, three or four story

         17  multiple dwelling on this lot, would not be able to

         18  do so with the present rezoning in this area.  If

         19  this present rezoning proceeds.

         20                 We are here today to request the

         21  Zoning Subcommittee, and then the Land Use Committee

         22  to review this matter and to amend the Homecrest

         23  rezoning to better reflect the conditions of this

         24  portion of Ocean Avenue.

         25                 In conclusion, I just want to say,
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          2  what better time to achieve the proper rezoning

          3  designation for this entire block than during the

          4  course of this major, well- planned rezoning such as

          5  this?  There are many blocks throughout the City

          6  that have multiple zones on them, and zoning

          7  districts, and so this would be yet one more.  And I

          8  don't think that should be an argument against

          9  trying to solve this problem.

         10                 And there's also examples of times,

         11  and I could show you, of times throughout the City

         12  where City Council modified City Planning proposals

         13  to the betterment of the particular block and

         14  neighborhood.  And I ask you to do that here.  Thank

         15  you very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: As noted earlier,

         17  this is a largely been in Council Member Nelson's

         18  district, and of course, I will defer to him.  But

         19  I've never tripped over a district line, and this

         20  abuts  --  this community abuts my own, and we share

         21  part of Community Board 15.  I do want to say, with

         22  respect to both the last panels, the folks from

         23  Avenue S, I think, need to understand that the

         24  Community Board 15 is unique in that it has the

         25  availability of special permits, which do permit
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          2  homeowners modest expansions to their homes.  In

          3  fact, the argument in the neighborhood is whether or

          4  not they go beyond modest.  So those who need to add

          5  a room would be able to do so, and in fact, down-

          6  zoning will protect you from the condominiums

          7  dropping from Mars, and the medical buildings on the

          8  middle of your block.  The special permits will

          9  permit you to add the room for your family.

         10                 And Mr. Petraro, I have great respect

         11  for you. We've done business before.  You're the

         12  only person so far who has testified today on behalf

         13  of a client.  And though I do not represent Ocean

         14  Avenue between T and U, I would hold that block up

         15  as the poster child for what has happened in our

         16  community that is wrong.  The buildings that went up

         17  on that block, the sliver buildings that replaced

         18  beautiful homes that used to characterize Ocean

         19  Avenue were a disgrace.  And in effect, what your

         20  client is asking you to argue for is, that he was

         21  too slow on the trigger, and he wants to join the

         22  parade.  And in my view, unfortunately, I don't have

         23  time machine.  I wish I did.  I would go back and

         24  rezone this block so that none of that could have

         25  happened.  But the less of it that happens, the
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          2  better.  Because I think what happened on Ocean

          3  Avenue on that block was disgusting.  And frankly, I

          4  would not slow this process down a day, a minute, a

          5  second to help someone who is just slow on the

          6  trigger, if it's going to allow some other developer

          7  to pour a foundation someplace.

          8                 Council Member Nelson.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Yes,

         10  Councilman Fidler.  I've been calling it the poster

         11  of ugliness.  That block, and those developers,

         12  should be held to task. Somehow, some way.  For they

         13  answer to a higher source, that's anybody else on

         14  earth.  Because that was the beginning of the

         15  uglification (sic) of our little corner of the

         16  world.  And it's very frustrating.  Maddening.  And

         17  that cancer seeped throughout our district.  We know

         18  what happened. It's been discussed.  It's been

         19  brought up.

         20                 And I don't want to compare, by the

         21  way, elephants to the marmosets, or whatever.  I

         22  mean, they're both animals. They're both mammals,

         23  perhaps.  But comparing, by the way, a private home,

         24  and we'll get to that too.  Expanding.  So this

         25  family does not have to move out of our district to
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          2  New Jersey, where ever they're going, should not be

          3  compared to what we're trying to stop here today.

          4  Whatsoever.  We don't want to lose people just

          5  because they have other kids, and they can't afford

          6  to buy another home in Brooklyn, because of the

          7  incredible increase in prices.

          8                 But anyway, I just wanted to attach a

          9  couple of words before we speak after this.  So the

         10  special zoning, wherever it is, in 15, wherever it

         11  goes, I don't want this to be confused. Because a

         12  lot of people have been confused.  If you have a

         13  private house, and you want to  --  your cousin

         14  retires in Cleveland, and you want to have them come

         15  in live in your house, and you don't want him

         16  sleeping on the couch, and you have kids besides, it

         17  doesn't make a pretty appearance to the kids, and

         18  you want to put something on, that is not the same

         19  as putting a medical centers, going up eight floors

         20  like on Ocean Avenue between T and U.

         21                 First it was this little pink

         22  disgustingness (sic). We thought that was bad

         23  enough.  It came out of nowhere.  And that's when we

         24  started to fight.  Councilman Fidler and myself.  In

         25  the beginning with this.  But we could not get this
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          2  done.  Until finally, the Administration would agree

          3  to allow us to begin this. And that wasn't till

          4  October of '04.  This was a lot of my frustration.

          5  This was building up and seeping and seeping.  With

          6  cancer, you've got to burn poison, or cut.  And we

          7  weren't allowed to even begin the procedure.  So it

          8  spread a lot.

          9                 And we could see the anguish that so

         10  many of us in our district had.  And by the way,

         11  after this triage is done, there's no doubt in my

         12  mind, some people will not be happy.  But show me

         13  where you can get one hundred percent of the people

         14  and I'll show you heaven.

         15                 But anyway, I just wanted to again,

         16  Lew brought it up eloquently.  Thank you.

         17                 MR. PETRARO: Excuse me.  Can I just

         18  say one thing? The BSA special permits.  Is there a

         19  ground swell for that to be removed from Community

         20  Board 15?  At the last meeting, I thought there was

         21  some petition for that.  I'm just  --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Well, if I

         23  may, Mr. Chairman, because there was, but the answer

         24  is it's not, I don't believe it has the support of

         25  the elected officials or the Community Board. I

                                                            65

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  think there may well be procedural changes to make

          3  the process fairer.  At least, in my view, they

          4  should be.  But special permits are not on the table

          5  today, and that's not part of this rezoning.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: The last panel in

          7  opposition. Chaim Lax.  Marshe Babich.  Helen

          8  Yurman.  And Pella Dickman.

          9                 While they're being seated, although

         10  we had closed the public hearing on some items, we

         11  have a representative here from the Four Borough

         12  Alliance, who has asked me to put into the record

         13  the organization support on the Brush Avenue

         14  rezoning, and the Sheepshead Bay rezoning.

         15                 I see there are only three people,

         16  and there were four people called, so I guess

         17  somebody is not here.

         18                 MS. YURMAN:  Hello.  My name is Helen

         19  Yurman.  I live on Avenue S between East 12th and

         20  East 13th.  And I want to thank Council Members for

         21  taking the time to listen to us.

         22                 First of all, somebody back there

         23  accused us of wanting to build in order to sell to

         24  developers, or to get more value for our property.

         25  I'm representing many people who want to stay in the
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          2  neighborhood.  But we can't because we don't have

          3  enough room to live.  And just getting a special

          4  permit for a small room is not going to do it.  Some

          5  of us need another floor.  I have a large family.

          6  Many children.  Grandchildren.  And I don't have

          7  enough room for myself.  Which means  --  I want to

          8  stay in the neighborhood, and I'm not able to, if I

          9  have restrictions.   A special permit to build an

         10  extra room, like it was discussed, is not going to

         11  do it.  I already have a variance on my home, with

         12  an extension, and that's not enough.  And I spent

         13  $10,000 to get that about 20 years ago.  I have my

         14  home 24 years.

         15                 So some type of zoning that will

         16  allow us to do more than to just have a special

         17  permit is really what we need.  We meed more than

         18  that.  I thank you.

         19                 MS. DICKMAN: My name is Pella

         20  Dickman.  I was approached by a neighbor last night.

         21    I had no idea what was going on.  And I'm getting

         22  an education just sitting here.

         23                 If there was something between that

         24  R4- 1 zoning and that R5B, I'd be all for it.  I'm

         25  appalled by the over development. I don't want a
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          2  medical center up against my driveway.  I don't want

          3  condos.  I don't want to change the character of the

          4  one and two family homes in my neighborhood.  But I

          5  don't want something as restrictive as the R4- 1,

          6  where I too, wouldn't be able to build up, if only I

          7  had the means to.  Thank you.

          8                 MS. BABICH: I was one of the people

          9  who proposed  -- I have nothing prepared.  I wasn't

         10  going to speak, but I changed by mind.  I was one of

         11  the people who  --  Marsha Babich  --  I was one of

         12  the people who was pushing to preserve the character

         13  of the neighborhood, and to keep it one and two-

         14  family homes.  I did not mean by that  --  when we

         15  asked for that, and there were many of us who asked

         16  for that because of the terrible things that were

         17  going on, and everyone was anxiety ridden.  No one

         18  knew what was going to come up next door to them.

         19  We did not mean  --  when we were talking about

         20  preserving the character, we meant keeping it one

         21  and two families.  We did not mean that we were

         22  opposed to large houses.

         23                 The houses that were built, where

         24  they added on the extensions, actually, most of them

         25  have more character than the old ones.  The way
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          2  they've been doing them, they look like very, very

          3  traditional homes.  But we asked for R4 because we

          4  have condo fear. We're terrified that they're going

          5  to take these houses and condo them.  In other

          6  words, buy a regular house, and add a third floor,

          7  and then sell each apartment separate.

          8                 If you have a shared driveway, if you

          9  share a driveway with somebody who is going to condo

         10  that house next to you, you have to share a driveway

         11  with this condo and all these different families.

         12  So that's why we wanted the R4- 1.  But I have the

         13  same problem like a lot of other people.  We have

         14  large families.  And if you want to extend on an R4-

         15  1, and go for the special permit, there's so little

         16  that you could do.  It isn't worth the $11,000 to do

         17  so little on your house.  Like if you're doing the

         18  attic, you don't want to do half the attic.  You're

         19  making an extension, you don't want such a tiny

         20  room, because it's not worth hiring a contractor to

         21  do all that work to have so little afterwards.

         22                 However, we're terrified the R5B too,

         23  because we're worried about condos.  But as far as

         24   --  so what we really wanted, but we don't seem to

         25  be getting, is to be able to add on to our homes,
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          2  more than the R4- 1, like say about the same as the

          3  R5, I mean, we're not looking to do the whole

          4  property.  But we don't want condos.  So like we

          5  sort of need a new number, which we don't have.  You

          6  know.  If it's an R5B, we still have to live in fear

          7  of these developers coming next door to us.  And

          8  they're like vultures.  And there's so many of them.

          9

         10                 So that's our problem.  That's our

         11  dilemma.  And as far as a special permit, there's a

         12  lot of opposition to it.  So we have a fear of that

         13  too.  If they take that away, on the R4- 1. We'll

         14  have nothing.  Like we really  --  there's just

         15  nothing you can do.  And I'm jealous of people who

         16  are able to have their children over.  Because my

         17  daughter, who is a pediatric dentist, who likes

         18  comfort, she doesn't like to come to my house.  It's

         19  too small.  So I've been saving to add on to my

         20  house.  But when I do it, I want to make it

         21  worthwhile to spend all that money.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  If

         23  there's no one else signed up to speak, I'm closing

         24  the public hearing.

         25                 I'd like to call the City Planning
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          2  back to comment on some of the things that have been

          3  made by some of the individual homeowners.

          4                 MS. MYER: Now?  Perfect.  I think

          5  Council  --  I'm Regina Myer, Brooklyn Office,

          6  Department of City Planning.  I do first, want to

          7  reiterate something Council Member Fidler mentioned

          8  just before.  Certainly the BSA special permit for

          9  enlargement of one and two- family homes is

         10  applicable in all of Community District 15.  And no

         11  change to that special permit is before you today.

         12  So I want to thank Council Member for mentioning

         13  that and reiterate that.

         14            In terms of the R4- 1 proposal.  As you

         15  know, that's a district that permits .9 FAR, and it

         16  has a height limit of 21 feet on the perimeter,

         17  going up to promote a pitched roof of an overall

         18  maximum height of 35 feet.  If the home is a totally

         19  detached home, there is side yard requirements on

         20  both sides, but it is flexible enough, this

         21  district, to recognize that if there are semi-

         22  detached homes in that district, that only one side

         23  yard is applicable.

         24                 We did do a very thorough compliance

         25  analysis of these homes in the area, to make sure
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          2  that the buildings in the R4 1 proposals do comply.

          3  And we found that nearly 97 percent of them comply

          4  with the existing district.  They are below the .9

          5  FAR, and would have room to expand.  Obviously, I

          6  don't have information before me right now on how

          7  much each individual building could expand, but we

          8  did find that 97 percent of the buildings comply

          9  with the regulations of the R4- 1 district.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I'm glad you

         11  mentioned that, because that's been a concern of all

         12  of us.  Obviously, we are in a free zone, but we

         13  don't want  --   and the  expression that we've used

         14  is "shrink wrap" neighborhoods.  So in your

         15  professional opinion, after having done the study

         16  and the review, that most of the homes, a large

         17  percentage, still have the ability to expand for

         18  their own use.

         19                 MS. MYER: Yes.  We found that in the

         20  range of .6 FAR to .9.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  Any

         22  questions?

         23                 Council Member Fidler.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Yes.  Thank

         25  you.  Ms. Myer, I'm sure you are aware that my
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          2  office had contact with you in the last several

          3  months about the issue of special permits, to try

          4  and figure out from someone, even though he's a

          5  lawyer, read the resolution five times, and couldn't

          6  figure out what special permits permit.  But one of

          7  our previous panels just characterized them as like

          8  adding half a room to the attic.  And on the other

          9  hand, if you were to go to Community Board 15, and

         10  hear some of the people who are opposed to special

         11  permits speak, they talk about special permits

         12  permitting people to as much as double the square

         13  footage of their homes.  While I got you here, and

         14  while I have you on the record, just how much

         15  addition to a house can a special permit allow?

         16                 MS. MYER: There is no absolute

         17  maximum in the special permit.  It is a

         18  discretionary special permit.  It needs to meet

         19  neighborhood character findings before the Board of

         20  Standards and Appeals.  I, of course, can't speak

         21  for the BSA, for the Board of Standards and Appeals.

         22    But there is no cap.  There is permission to go

         23  into both the rear yard  --  the front yard is

         24  fixed, but into the rear yard.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And in your
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          2  experience, have special permits been used to as

          3  much as double a square footage of a home?

          4                 MS. MYER: Yes.  They have.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I see a number of

          6  hands up.  I'd like to privilege, since this is

          7  Council Member Nelson's district. Council Member

          8  Nelson.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you.  As

         10  far as the application, which will be coming, I want

         11  to be  --  I want to pronounce this clearly and

         12  slowly, is a FUCA.  Follow Up Corrective Action.

         13  With that property, otherwise known as a FUCA.  Say

         14  that slowly, colleagues.  With that property,

         15  because I see there, I would recommend to BSA and

         16  this Committee, and the Committee as a whole, to

         17  allow  --  this is one ugly house comparatively.

         18  It's going to stand out like a sore thumb.  I would

         19  like to see this to be allowed to be euthanized.

         20  When the time comes.  You know which one I'm talking

         21  about.  On Ocean Avenue.  The one that's just like a

         22  little bit off, where they're already going to

         23  demolish the gas station area.  You had a Rite- Aid.

         24    You're going to have a building.  Then you got

         25  this euthanized, hopefully someday, house. Then
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          2  you've got this doctor's office, who already went up

          3  high and parks his car underneath there.  And then

          4  hopefully, we can protect those homeowners going

          5  down.  There's about  --  I think that maybe ten

          6  attached houses in a row.  And I only hope they want

          7  to stay there, because they're not going to get the

          8  price they may want for the house.

          9                 But when it gets to that point, they

         10  just wanted to bring it up now, at this hearing,

         11  that this follow up corrective action should be

         12  utilized as well.

         13                 But again, just going back to it,

         14  when we saw that pink house go up, we thought that

         15  it doesn't get any worse than this.  On Ocean Avenue

         16  between T and U.  And boy were we wrong. Because now

         17  that little pink house looks like a little brother,

         18  because abutted to it is a house that dwarfs it.

         19  And this is really, again, why we're so upset and

         20  why we want this to take place as soon as possible.

         21                 But I don't know if you understood

         22  what I was talking about as far as that house.  When

         23  it gets to BSA.  I think everybody should be

         24  supporting this.  City Planning as well.  If we

         25  don't go 150 in, to get rid of that house, and let
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          2  it go, and make the block look a little more normal,

          3  then we have to do a follow up corrective action.

          4                 MS. MYER: I guess what I would say is

          5  that the proposal for the R4- 1 on Ocean Avenue is

          6  meant to reflect the character, especially of the

          7  remaining houses to the south of the area that you

          8  were discussing.  We can fully understand  --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Because it

         10  would be like this, and like this  --

         11                 MS. MYER: That there is construction

         12  going on at the former gas station in the parking

         13  lot.  The problem that we have been discussing

         14  earlier today, was that we were very concerned that

         15  a more liberal zone would affect a good deal of

         16  homes that did, from our perspective, deserve to be

         17  protected.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: I agree.  And

         19  those attached houses after that whatever it's going

         20  to be, the building that's going up in this gas

         21  station, but there's like being caught in the middle

         22  of it, which is going to be sort of like standing

         23  out, so to speak.  Thank you.  Thank you Mr. Chair.

         24                      CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council

         25  Member Jackson.
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          2                      COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank

          3  you Mr. Chair. Director, I'm a new member of this

          4  Committee, so I'm trying to understand all of the

          5  details.  I did understand a panel of people that

          6  spoke in favor and against.  But can you just

          7  summarize for me, maybe I'm kind of new at this.

          8  What is the primary complaint from your perspective,

          9  as a Director, of the individuals who spoke against

         10  this zoning change?

         11                      MS. MYER: This area, and I think

         12  you've heard this from the beginning of our

         13  presentation, is in its entirety, zoned R6.  Which

         14  is a very liberal apartment house district.  And as

         15  you also heard, is a great deal of one and two-

         16  family homes in this area.  When we took on this

         17  rezoning, we really sought to balance the amount of

         18  blocks that we could preserve, to keep that great

         19  character on those blocks, but permit the apartment

         20  houses on specific areas where there was already an

         21  apartment house character.

         22                 The people  --  and we use the zoning

         23  districts that we have available to us now, in terms

         24  of the contextual districts. The districts we used

         25  were R4- 1, which is the district I just described
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          2  to Council Member Avella.  R5B, where there were

          3  more attached homes, and then R7A, where there were

          4  apartment houses.

          5                 Some of the people that came to speak

          6  against were concerned that they would not have the

          7  ability to expand, using the R4- 1 district.  Even

          8  though I do believe at least several of them

          9  recognized that their homes did fit the character of

         10  the existing R4- 1 district.  What I did testify, in

         11  terms of my comments to Council Member Avella, was

         12  that when we did compliance analysis, and that's

         13  sort of our technical term for making sure that the

         14  right property fits the right zone --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Ninety- seven

         16  percent.

         17                 MS. MYER: -- Did in fact meet those

         18  requirements.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: But in order

         20  to  --  so they're concerned that they would not be

         21  able to build or add on to adhere to their family

         22  needs or wishes, as one gentleman spoke, he has a

         23  large family.  Another individual talked about the

         24  possibility of her son coming back, or a daughter,

         25  and growing a little bit to meet their needs.  Would
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          2  they have the ability within this zone, this

          3  proposed zoning change, would they have the ability

          4  to meet those family personal needs where they live

          5  at?

          6                 MS. MYER: I don't have the

          7  information in front of me, where I could answer

          8  you, like one exact house, how much one person

          9  could.  We certainly could go back and do that.  But

         10  we did find that most could.  And I'd be happy to

         11  follow up on any specific questions, using the Land

         12  Use Committee, excuse me, the Land Use Office if you

         13  want, then I could explain that to you or go back

         14  and do a little bit more research on the exact, I

         15  say, modicum of the ability to expand.

         16                 But we did find that 97 percent

         17  complied, and they were in a range of .6 to .9.  The

         18  question being how much in that range, and where in

         19  that range I could go back on our own research and

         20  actually answer that question for you.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: But more

         22  specifically, you would, I think, communicate with

         23  Council Member Fidler about the fact that  --  or

         24  Council Member Felder  --  about BSA special permits

         25  or something like that?  Where basically there is no
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          2  set limit in that in essence, people can go and ask

          3  for a special permit, and be basically out of

          4  compliance in some respects.  Did I gather that?

          5                 MS. MYER: In District 16, in

          6  Brooklyn, the property owners have this additional

          7  capability to go to the BSA.  That is true.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Would that

          9  still be in conformity with the norm in the

         10  community?

         11                 MS. MYER: The BSA would have to make

         12  a finding regarding the neighborhood character on

         13  that specific block.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.  Thank

         15  you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         17  Sears.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you Mr.

         19  Chair.  I'll be very quick.  It's really directed at

         20  City Planning.  It seems that so much that a good

         21  part of  --  and I have to commend my colleagues.

         22  Because this is an issue that's Citywide.  And

         23  certainly if I were to talk about Jackson Heights

         24  and Elmhurst, and Corona, I think that all of you,

         25  with what's being discussed, would be diminished in
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          2  comparison to those communities.  So I commend you

          3  on that, and I think we could probably all take a

          4  lead on some of those things.

          5                 But my concern, really, with City

          6  Planning, is that so much of what I have heard has

          7  been the direct voicing against the violations that

          8  are prevalent in this building, in this construction

          9  that's going on.  Down- zoning, or rezoning, I'd

         10  rather say that, is not going to stop those who

         11  continue to break the law. And we can't do something

         12  because it's really a resistance to the violation.

         13  So my question to you  --  and since the Chair, very

         14  capable Chair for the Buildings Department is here,

         15  with all of this rezoning, what will continue to be

         16  your frustration, which is the frustration of the

         17  communities, that needs to be done, that is a law,

         18  but is not being enforced, that now shifts over from

         19  your responsibility of rezoning, and with the

         20  efforts of the Council Members, shifts over to the

         21  Buildings Department?

         22                 And what we hear, and certainly what

         23  we experienced throughout the City is the fact that

         24  the law is continually broken, and rezoning will not

         25  stop that.  As a result, what needs to work
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          2  together.  We need to have the agencies work

          3  together so that what you do in rezoning, and the

          4  efforts around the City, is not washed away  by the

          5  arrogance of those who continue to break the law.

          6                 So it seems to me that we do one

          7  thing, with a huge effort, and I can tell you the

          8  effrontery of breaking that law will continue.  I

          9  just saw a building, this medical building that

         10  you're talking about.  The fact is, there are those

         11  that continue to put pilings under the foundation of

         12  the adjoining homes.  Now, that's not your agency's

         13  problem.  So you're doing things that are changing

         14  rezoning so that we can maintain the integrity of

         15  the community, but at the same time, we're now

         16  shifting more responsibility to the Buildings

         17  Department, and I think that what I'm saying is that

         18  we can't do one without the other.

         19                 And I think that we're putting the

         20  cart before the horse unless we are working together

         21  with the Buildings Department to make any rezoning a

         22  reality that will protect the integrity of the

         23  community.  Otherwise, I could show you places that

         24  are horrible.  And will continue to be horrible.

         25  Because that law will continue to be broken.
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          2  Because quite frankly, nobody is enforcing it.

          3                 So I don't understand rezoning, when

          4  we're going to have the same issue, the same issue.

          5  As if someone suddenly going up three stories, and

          6  then either they're forced to take it down, or

          7  they'll do something else.  Corporations are formed

          8  continually when they break the law.  They go out of

          9  business and they form another corporation.  So I

         10  think what I'm really asking, and it's not a land

         11  use issue.  But I have always felt that the

         12  responsibility of government, and local government,

         13  is to get the agencies to work more closely

         14  together, so that the efforts and the things that we

         15  do have greater meaning, and will actually have an

         16  impact upon the communities.  Because New York City

         17  is a City of communities.  And I have to say, that

         18  those communities are not without development.  And

         19  good developers, and good development need to be

         20  welcomed by the communities for whatever zoning and

         21  rezoning is done.

         22                 It is really those that have no sense

         23  of respect for communities that do what they're

         24  doing.  And I don't think, Mr. Chair of the

         25  Buildings Department, and with Land Use and Zoning,
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          2  how these agencies do not come connected.  And we

          3  are going through a budget process pretty soon in

          4  the Council.  We ought to look at what it's going to

          5  take to get these agencies integrated so that those

          6  gaps get smaller and smaller.  Otherwise, I think we

          7  are just doing something that will become

          8  frustrating, more frustrating than what we're

          9  experiencing, unless, in rezoning, we also put in

         10  the changes that are necessary to make that rezoning

         11  stick, and for people to stop breaking the laws.  If

         12  that means more money to some of these agencies, and

         13  I think we have to do it.

         14                 And the only reason I'm saying this

         15  is because it's not a land use issue in what I'm

         16  saying, but at the same time, Land Use cannot work

         17  without having the Buildings Department, and

         18  Finance, to really make this happen.  Because you've

         19  done a great deal of work.  And it certainly should

         20  not go down the tubes because we are not having

         21  enforcement of rezoning laws.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I'm absolutely

         23  forced to comment on that.  First of all, the Chair

         24  obviously agrees with you.  In terms of the

         25  Department of Buildings.  Department of City
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          2  Planning has been terrific in doing these rezonings,

          3  and working with the Council and the Council

          4  Members.  It is the Department of Buildings that has

          5  been a serious problem.  The one thing I have to

          6  disagree with you is, that we should  --  because

          7  you made a comment about putting the cart before the

          8  horse  That I disagree with.  We have to do both

          9  simultaneously.  The rezonings have to go on, but

         10  there has to be concurrent enforcement from the

         11  Department of Buildings. And I know I have made this

         12  a priority conversation with City Planning, with the

         13  Department of Buildings and the Administration, at

         14  every meeting I have had with them.  The two

         15  agencies have to get together.  The fault is not

         16  with City Planning, it is wit DOB.

         17                 And the Administration has to

         18  recognize the fact that they have to get on top of

         19  that agency.  Because it is ridicules what's

         20  happening.  There has been little, some progress,

         21  but it hasn't been enough.  And you do correctly

         22  point out that if it's on the left hand, we're

         23  changing the zoning.  If it's on the right hand, we

         24  don't get the enforcement.  We will have

         25  accomplished nothing.  But both of them have to be
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          2  done at the same time.

          3                 You know it's getting kind of late,

          4  but Council Member Seabrook.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: I'm not

          6  going to be long. Just a question to the City

          7  Planning as it relates  --  and perhaps at another

          8  point you could provide us with  --  but if the

          9  Mayor has a plan for affordable housing, and there

         10  is a means of constant rezoning, down- sizing, and

         11  there's a tremendous housing need within this City,

         12  and I looked at a number of these communities and I

         13  have some concern when we talk about maintaining

         14  originality and all of these things, because these,

         15  at some time, not in particular, but they become

         16  cold words.  And I think that there has to be a

         17  discussion as it relates to that, historically.  And

         18  if we look at this public school system as being the

         19  most segregated, if not the most second segregated

         20  public school system in America, in New York City,

         21  and that has a direct reflection of neighborhoods,

         22  and so, when we are talking about providing people

         23  and opening up and allowing  --  there has to be

         24  some look, and I'd like to know how do City

         25  Planning, as it relates to the changing demographics
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          2  of this City, is that an equation that has to be

          3  looked at as we relate to what we're trying to

          4  preserve.  Some things you don't want to preserve.

          5  And we have to look at that.

          6                 And I have some real concerns about

          7  voting for some of these things that  --  Woodlawn

          8  and other places, because you know, it's a nice

          9  neighborhood, but it has a lot to be desired for

         10  diversity.  And I think that when we look at all of

         11  this, and how we do this, and I have some concerns

         12  about the type of votes that take place, and what

         13  we're doing here.  And not criticizing people and

         14  their concerns for their communities et cetera, but

         15  there's a bigger picture that we have to look at.

         16  And I have some real concerns about that, Mr.

         17  Chairman.  That's why I wanted to relate that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I appreciate your

         19  comments, Council Member.  And I know City Planning

         20  does take into account these issues.  And wherever

         21  possible, they do do upzonings.  And the one thing I

         22  can say, having Chaired this Committee for over four

         23  years, it is interesting to see minority communities

         24  as well ask for these rezonings.  So it is across

         25  the board that neighborhoods throughout the City are

                                                            87

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  asking for these rezonings to take place.

          3                 There's no question.  You're right.

          4  And perhaps we could have one day have City Planning

          5  come and give a little presentation on that issue.

          6  And that's something that we can discuss on another

          7  day.  But you point is well taken.

          8                 Council Member Nelson I think wants

          9  to be the last.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Yes, I suppose

         11  so.  It's like almost the end of the movie, where

         12  then you see the credits going down.  I wanted to

         13  thank Melinda Katz, Chair of the Land Use Committee,

         14  and the members of her staff, for doing a tremendous

         15  job.  Obviously, also Tony Avella, and his

         16  Subcommittee and the Members, and their staff.  It's

         17  a hell of a lot of work.

         18                 Gale, also of course, and again the

         19  entire staff. Amanda Burden, Regina Myers, Vincent

         20  Von Angle (phonetic), the entire staff.  I leave out

         21  anyone.  Susan Owen.  The office of City Planning in

         22  its entirety.  We'll say that.

         23                 Marty Markowitz, my dear friend.  And

         24  his committee. And members Richie Bearak (phonetic),

         25  my many constituents, and all the advocates who have
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          2  approached my office.  And you could see at the end

          3  of the movie, it's just sort of trickling by you.

          4  We'll get to the all the producers and directors

          5  soon.  But thank you all for the great work you've

          6  done.  I appreciate it.  I'm almost hoarse.  People

          7  don't know the amount of work that went into this

          8  through the years.  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay.  We're

         10  finally ready for the vote.  We are voting,

         11  remember, on the Homecrest rezoning, the Brush

         12  Avenue rezoning, the Woodlawn rezoning, the

         13  Baychester rezoning, in Council Member Seabrook's

         14  district.  We will lay the vote over till 9:45 on

         15  Thursday, before Land Use.  And we are voting on the

         16  Sheepshead Bay rezoning.  The Chair recommends

         17  approval on all of those items.  Again, except for

         18  Baychester, which we will hold the vote over till

         19  Thursday at 9:45 before the Land Use Committee, to

         20  give Council Member Seabrook an opportunity to meet

         21  with City Planning.  Chair recommends approval on

         22  all those other items.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Chair Avella.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Aye.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Dilan.

                                                            89

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Aye.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Felder.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Aye.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Gioia.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Yes.  Thank

          7  you.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member

          9  McMahon.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Aye.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member

         12  Jackson.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Aye on all.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Katz.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Aye.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member

         17  Seabrook.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Aye.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Sears.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Aye.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: The vote stands at 11

         22  in the affirmative, none in the negative, and no

         23  abstentions.  And  is referred to the full Land Use

         24  Committee.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: The meeting is
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          2  recessed until Thursday at 9:45.

          3                 (The following written testimony was

          4  read into the record.)

          5                 Written testimony of:

          6                 Daniel McCalla

          7                 Vice Chairman for Brooklyn

          8                 The Four Borough Neighborhood

          9  Preservation Alliance

         10

         11                 My name is Daniel McCalla.  I am a

         12  member of The Four Borough Neighborhood Preservation

         13  Alliance.  I am here today to testify in support of

         14  LU No. 33 amendment to the zoning map from an R4 to

         15  an R4A district.  In an ideal world the zoning

         16  change will encourage the preservation of one and

         17  two family detached housing. I also support the

         18  proposed zoning changes of LU No. 34 R4- 1 district

         19  to R4A and the proposal to change the R5 to R4 and

         20  finally the zoning changes of LU No. 35.  The 4BNA

         21  (The Four Borough Neighborhood Preservation

         22  Alliance) came together in May 2005 at the request

         23  of Stanley Coogan to address problems of over

         24  development.

         25                 We support the efforts of civic
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          2  associations, public officials, and City Planning to

          3  correct the zoning of the low density neighborhoods

          4  of the outer boroughs.  In the ate of the hot real

          5  estate market, predatory developers have laid waste

          6  to many neighborhoods throughout the City.  The

          7  zoning changes submitted by the Department of City

          8  Planning will hopefully encourage future development

          9  that is more in context with the existing

         10  neighborhood, as well as preserve the existing

         11  character of homes currently in stock.  Over

         12  development put a strain on existing infrastructure

         13  in Woodlawn and possibly causing delay in response

         14  time of Fire Department services.

         15                 In conclusion, with the need for

         16  development in the Bronx, also calls on the burden

         17  of responsibility.  I would like to thank the Bronx

         18  division of the Department of City Planning, elected

         19  officials, and local civic associations for their

         20  efforts. Chairman Avella, I encourage the committee

         21  on zoning and franchises to review the application

         22  and give it a positive vote.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 (Hearing concluded at 11:45 a.m.)
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